
 

Extraordinary meeting of 
Overview and 
ScrutinyOverview & 
Scrutiny Committee 

Agenda 

Tuesday, 18 June 2024 6.00 p.m. 
Council Chamber - Town Hall, Whitechapel 

Members: 

Chair: Councillor Jahed Choudhury 

Vice Chair:   
 
Councillor Suluk Ahmed, Councillor Bodrul Choudhury, Councillor Ahmodur Khan, 
Councillor Abdul Mannan, Councillor Bellal Uddin, Councillor Sabina Akhtar, Councillor 
Amina Ali, Councillor Asma Islam, Councillor Amy Lee and Councillor Nathalie Bienfait 

Co-opted Members:  
Jahid Ahmed and Halima Islam 

Deputies: Councillor Ahmodul Kabir, Councillor Saif Uddin Khaled, Councillor Amin 

Rahman, Councillor Maisha Begum, Councillor Mufeedah Bustin, Councillor Marc 
Francis and Councillor James King 

[The quorum for this body is 3 voting Members] 

Contact for further enquiries:  

Thomas French, Democratic Services, 

Thomas.French@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

020 7364 3048  

Town Hall, 160 Whitechapel Road, London, E1 1BJ  

http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee 

Public Pack



 

 

 



 

 

 
Public Information  
 
Viewing or Participating in Committee Meetings 
 
The meeting will be broadcast live on the Council’s website. A link to the website is 
detailed below. The press and public are encouraged to watch this meeting on line.  
 

 
Meeting Webcast 
The meeting is being webcast for viewing through the Council’s webcast system. 
http://towerhamlets.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 

Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be found on our 
website from day of publication.   

To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for the relevant 
committee and meeting date.  

Agendas are available on the Modern.Gov, Windows, iPad and Android apps 

Scan this QR code to view the electronic agenda  

 

http://towerhamlets.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee


 

 

 

A Guide to Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

The Local Government Act 2000 established the overview and scrutiny function for 
every council, with the key roles of:  
  

 Scrutinising decisions before or after they are made or implemented 

 Proposing new policies and commenting on draft policies, and 

 Ensuring customer satisfaction and value for money. 
  
The aim is to make the decision-making process more transparent, accountable and 
inclusive, and improve services for people by being responsive to their needs. Overview 
& Scrutiny membership is required to reflect the proportional political makeup of the 
council and, as well as council services, there are statutory powers to examine the 
impact of work undertaken by partnerships and outside bodies, including the Crime and 
Disorder Reduction Partnership and local health bodies. 
  
In Tower Hamlets, the function is exercised by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
(OSC). The OSC considers issues from across the council and partnership remit. The 
Committee has 3 Sub-Committees: 

 Children & Education Scrutiny Sub Committee 

 Health & Adults Scrutiny Sub Committee 

 Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny Sub Committee 
 
The committee’s quorum is three voting members. 
 
Public Engagement 
 
OSC usually meets once per month (a few days before Cabinet, to allow scrutiny of 
decisions scheduled to be made there). These meetings are open to the public 
to attend, and a timetable for meeting dates and deadlines can be found on the 
Council’s website. More detail of how residents can engage with Overview and Scrutiny 
are available here 
Overview and scrutiny (towerhamlets.gov.uk) 
 
  

http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgAgendaManagementTimetable.aspx?RP=327
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/lgnl/council_and_democracy/Overview-and-scrutiny.aspx


 

 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee  

 
Tuesday, 18 June 2024 

 
6.00 p.m. 

 

SECTION ONE 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

To receive any apologies for absence. 
 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST AND 
OTHER INTERESTS (PAGES 7 - 8) 

 

Members are reminded to consider the categories of interest in the Code of Conduct for 
Members to determine whether they have an interest in any agenda item and any 
action they should take. For further details, please see the attached note from the 
Monitoring Officer.  
 
Members are reminded to declare the nature of the interest and the agenda item it 
relates to. Please note that ultimately it’s the Members’ responsibility to declare any 
interests form and to update their register of interest form as required by the Code.  
 
If in doubt as to the nature of your interest, you are advised to seek advice prior to the 
meeting by contacting the Monitoring Officer or Democratic Services  
 

3. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  

No decisions of the Mayor in Cabinet ( … date … ) in respect of unrestricted reports on 
the agenda were ‘called in’. 
 

3 .1 Victoria Park Licence to Occupy (Pages 9 - 30) 
 

Next Meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Tuesday, 9 July 2024 at 6.30 p.m. to be held in Council Chamber - Town Hall, 
Whitechapel 



This page is intentionally left blank



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS AT MEETINGS– NOTE FROM THE 

MONITORING OFFICER 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Code of Conduct for 

Members at Part C, Section 31 of the Council’s Constitution  

(i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) 

You have a DPI in any item of business on the agenda where it relates to the categories listed in 

Appendix A to this guidance. Please note that a DPI includes: (i) Your own relevant interests; 

(ii)Those of your spouse or civil partner; (iii) A person with whom the Member is living as 

husband/wife/civil partners. Other individuals, e.g. Children, siblings and flatmates do not need to 

be considered.  Failure to disclose or register a DPI (within 28 days) is a criminal offence. 

Members with a DPI, (unless granted a dispensation) must not seek to improperly influence the 

decision, must declare the nature of the interest and leave the meeting room (including the public 

gallery) during the consideration and decision on the item – unless exercising their right to address 

the Committee.  

DPI Dispensations and Sensitive Interests. In certain circumstances, Members may make a 

request to the Monitoring Officer for a DPI dispensation or for an interest to be treated as sensitive 

interest.  

(ii) Non - DPI Interests that the Council has decided should be registered – 

(Non - DPIs) 

You will have ‘Non DPI Interest’ in any item on the agenda, where it relates to (i) the offer of gifts 

or hospitality, (with an estimated value of at least £25) (ii) Council Appointments or nominations to 

bodies (iii) Membership of any body exercising a function of a public nature, a charitable purpose 

or aimed at influencing public opinion. 

Members must declare the nature of the interest, but may stay in the meeting room and participate 
in the consideration of the matter and vote on it unless:  
 

 A reasonable person would think that your interest is so significant that it would be likely to 
impair your judgement of the public interest.  If so, you must withdraw and take no part 
in the consideration or discussion of the matter. 

(iii) Declarations of Interests not included in the Register of Members’ Interest. 
 

Occasions may arise where a matter under consideration would, or would be likely to, affect the 
wellbeing of you, your family, or close associate(s) more than it would anyone else living in 
the local area but which is not required to be included in the Register of Members’ Interests. In such 
matters, Members must consider the information set out in paragraph (ii) above regarding Non DPI 
- interests and apply the test, set out in this paragraph. 
 

Guidance on Predetermination and Bias  
 

Member’s attention is drawn to the guidance on predetermination and bias, particularly the need to 
consider the merits of the case with an open mind, as set out in the Planning and Licensing Codes 
of Conduct, (Part C, Section 34 and 35 of the Constitution). For further advice on the possibility of 
bias or predetermination, you are advised to seek advice prior to the meeting.  
 

Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992 - Declarations which restrict 
Members in Council Tax arrears, for at least a two months from voting  
 

In such circumstances the member may not vote on any reports and motions with respect to the 
matter.   
 

Further Advice contact: Linda Walker, Interim Director of Legal and Monitoring Officer, Tel: 0207 

364 4348 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



APPENDIX A: Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 

(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 

Subject  Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 
 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit 
(other than from the relevant authority) made or provided 
within the relevant period in respect of any expenses 
incurred by the Member in carrying out duties as a member, 
or towards the election expenses of the Member. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or 
a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) 
and the relevant authority— 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or 
works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in 
the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 
(b) either— 
 
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 
or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 
 

 

Page 8



Non-Executive Report of the: 

 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

18 June 2024 

 
Report of Linda Walker, Interim Director - Legal & 
Monitoring Officer 
 

Classification: 
Unrestricted 

Call in - Victoria Park Licence to Occupy 
 

 

Originating Officer(s) Thomas French, Democratic Services Officer 
(Committee) 
 

Wards affected All 
 

 
CONSIDERATION OF THE CALL IN 
 
A call in request has been received on the decision of Cabinet, 16 May 2024 on Item 
6.9 Victoria Park Licence to Occupy 
 
In accordance with the Council’s call in procedure rules, the matter is referred to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) for its consideration and to decide whether 
to refer the matter back to Cabinet for further consideration.  The following procedure 
is to be followed by the Committee for consideration of the Call In: 
 

i. Chair to invite a call-in member to present call-in. 

ii. Chair to invite members of the Committee to ask question. 

iii. Chair to Invite Cabinet Member to respond to the call-in. 

iv. Chair to invite members of the Committee to ask questions. 

v. Followed by a general debate. 

 
It is open to the OSC to either resolve to take no action (which would have the effect 
of endorsing the original Cabinet decisions), or to refer the matter back to the 
Cabinet for further consideration setting out the nature of its concerns and possibly 
recommending an alternative course of action. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3.1



RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Overview and Scrutiny considers: 
 
1. The contents of the attached report, review the Cabinet’s decision 

(provisional, subject to call in) arising; and  
 
2. Decide whether to accept the decision or to refer the matter back to the 

Cabinet with proposals and reasons. 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
On 16 May 2024, the Mayor in Cabinet considered a report on Victoria Park Licence 
to Occupy 
 
As a result of discussions on the report it was RESOLVED:  
 

1.  Approve the option to enter into a Licence to Occupy with AEG Presents 
Limited as required. 
 

2. Authorise the Corporate Director of Communities to instruct the Director of 
Legal Services and Monitoring Officer, to execute and enter into all necessary 
agreements to give effect to the implementation of recommendation 1; 

 
3. To note the Equalities specific considerations as set out in Paragraph 4 

 
 
The decisions above have been Called-In by Councillors Marc Francis, Mufeedah 
Bustin, Mohammed Chowdhury, Asma Begum, Sirajul Islam. This is in accordance 
with the provisions of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules of the Council’s 
Constitution. 
 
In accordance with the OSC Protocols and Guidance adopted by the Committee at 
its meeting on 4 June 2013, any Member(s) who present(s) the “Call In” is (are) not 
eligible to participate in the general debate. 
 
REASONS FOR THE CALL IN 
 
The call in requisition from the Councillors noted above has provided reason(s) for 
the call-in. The reason(s) are replicated below: 
 

 This report has enabled the Mayor to extend the excessive number of major 
commercial events in Victoria Park for an additional year (2027); 
 

 In keeping with its refusal to listen to the views of residents living around 
Victoria Park, this change has not been notified to residents or even the 
Friends Group; 

Page 10



 Para 5.2 presents AEG’s ‘community engagement’ as if it fulfills Tower 
Hamlets Council’s own obligation to consult residents on decisions affecting 
their lives; 
 

 This change commits an incoming Executive Mayor following the May 2026 
local elections to a programme of events for half their term of office. 
 

 
ALTERNATIVE COURSE OF ACTION PROPOSED 
 

 The Mayor should reverse his decision of 16th May 2024 to extend the 
contract with AEG for its licence to occupy Victoria Park into 2027, and 
undertake proper consultation with residents before any decision is made; 

____________________________________ 
 
 
Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents 
 
Linked Report 

 None 
 
Appendices 

 Appendix 1 – Victoria Park Licence to Occupy 
 
The original report to the Cabinet meeting is attached to this OSC report as 
Appendix 1. The Cabinet report includes an exempt (restricted from publication) 
appendix which is available for Members of OSC as a restricted appendix. 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) List of “Background 
Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

 None. 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet 

 
 

16 May 2024 

 
Report of: Simon Baxter, Corporate Director, 
Communities  

Classification: 
Partially exempt  

Victoria Park Licence to Occupy  

 
Proposed Decision Path (indicate) – Delete Section Before Publication: 

 Step [Delete as 
applicable] 

Date 

DLT Level (Tier One) DLT / CD   

CLT Level (Tier Two) CLT / CE 30/04/2024  

Discussion with Mayor 
(Tier Three) 

MAY  

Discussion with Lead 
Member (Tier Three) 

LM 04/04/2024 

Member Level (Tier four) MAB / 121 01/05/2024 

Decision (Tier five) Cabinet / IMD 16/05/2024 

Proposed Decision Path (indicate) – Delete Section Before Publication: 
 
 

Page 13



Lead Member Cllr Iqbal Hossain, Cabinet Member for Culture and Recreation  

Originating 
Officer(s) 

Catherine Boyd, Head of Arts, Parks and Events 

Wards affected All wards  

Key Decision? Yes   

Reason for Key 
Decision 

Significant impact on wards 
 

Forward Plan 
Notice Published 

23/04/24 

Exempt 
information 
 
 

This report and/or its appendices include information that has 
been exempted from publication as the Monitoring Officer: 

 has deemed that the information meets the definition of 
a category of exempt information as set out in the 
Council’s Access to Information Rules; and  

 has deemed that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information. 

 
The exempt information is contained in 

 Exempt Appendix 1  
 
The exempt information falls into this category: 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority handling the 
information) 
 
 

Strategic Plan 
Priority / 
Outcome 

4. Boosting culture, business, jobs, and leisure 

 

Executive Summary 

The Arts, Parks and Events team manages a range of community, commercial and 
corporate events across the Council’s parks and open spaces. This includes the 
Victoria Park Major Events programme. This report sets out the recommended 
commercial approach for licensing major events in Victoria Park in 2024, 2025, 2026 
and 2027 in line with the Council’s Major Event Policy for Victoria Park. The report 
outlines the management arrangements and how these support the Council’s 
Medium Term Financial Strategy.  
 
It is proposed that the Council extends the licence to occupy arrangement, approved 
by Cabinet on 31 January 2024, to enable AEG Presents Ltd to deliver events in 
Victoria Park from August 2024 to September 2027 (at times to be specifically 
agreed). This approach will enable the Council to continue to maintain its parks and 
open spaces as central government grants reduce further over the coming years and 
provide increased opportunities for residents and visitors to engage with a wide 
range of events including free to access community event days.  

 
 

Page 14



THIS SECTION TO BE DELETED BEFORE PUBLICATION 
 
Decision Type 

Key 
Decision? 

 Urgent 
Decision? 

 Exempt from 
Call-In? 

 Restricted Report or 
Partially Restricted (e.g. 
appendix)? 

Yes  No  No  Yes 

 
*If the answer is yes make sure the forthcoming decision on the website states this 
or else the decision cannot be taken. 
 
Guidance Documents 
Further details on the procedure for Urgent Decisions can be found in the Intranet 
Library and the Guide to Report Writing guidance note. 
 
Specific Issues for Pre-Decision Meetings 
(Officers may use the following table to add points of note for internal meetings such 
as CLT, MAB or DMTs. Content can be deleted at any stage and, in any case, will be 
before publication for the decision making meeting.) 
 

Directorate Leadership Team 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Corporate Leadership Team 

 

Mayor/Lead Member 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Communications 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

http://edemoc2ksrv:8070/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=FP3%20-%20Executive%20Decisions%20Urgency%20Procedures&ID=4604&RPID=2147812&sch=doc&cat=13011&path=13011
http://edemoc2ksrv:8070/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=FP3%20-%20Executive%20Decisions%20Urgency%20Procedures&ID=4604&RPID=2147812&sch=doc&cat=13011&path=13011
http://edemoc2ksrv:8070/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD4687&ID=4687&RPID=2147819&sch=doc&cat=13048&path=13048


 
THIS SECTION TO BE DELETED BEFORE PUBLICATION 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
The Mayor in Cabinet is recommended to:  
 

1. Approve the option to enter into a Licence to Occupy with AEG Presents 
Limited as required.  
 

2. Authorise the Corporate Director of Communities to instruct the Director 
of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer, to execute and enter into all 
necessary agreements to give effect to the implementation of 
recommendation 1;  

3. To note the Equalities specific considerations as set out in Paragraph 4. 
 
 
1 REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
1.1 Cabinet approved a three-year licence to occupy in January 2024 to permit 

AEG Presents Limited to hold events in Victoria Park Between April and 
September in 2024, 2025 and 2026. 
 

1.2 As the Council was unable to grant permission until January 2024, it was 
not possible for AEG Presents Limited to make the necessary arrangements 
for additional events in May/June 2024. Therefore, AEG Presents Limited’s 
licence to occupy will now only operate from 1 August 2024 until 30 
September 2026. This will result in a reduction in the forecasted income to 
the Council for financial year 2024/25.  
 

1.3 AEG Presents Limited, has approached the Council to extend their licence 
to occupy parts of Victoria Park at times to be agreed from 1 August 2024 
until 30 September 2027. This extension would enable AEG Presents 
Limited to deliver three full years of events (as originally approved by 
Cabinet) in Victoria Park (in addition to the planned August 2024 event 
dates).  
 

1.4 The number of event days, as approved by Cabinet in January 2024, would 
remain at the same level of a proposed 11 days of major events (or such 
other days that comply with the Council’s Major Events Policy for Victoria 
Park) and up to eight days of community events plus additional days to be 
agreed for assembling and dismantling of any required facilities per annum. 
 

1.5 The decision to revise the licence to occupy arrangement, to enable AEG 
Presents Limited to deliver three and half years of events, will enable the 
Council to receive a guaranteed rental fee. 

 

Page 16



1.6 Under the current licence to occupy arrangement, AEG Presents Limited 
are only obligated to deliver and pay a fee for All Points East/In the 
Neighbourhood and one additional weekend in 2025 and 2026 (total of 14 
event days per annum). In addition, AEG Presents Limited, have the option 
of delivering a second weekend of events in 2025 and 2026 (total of 19 
event days per annum). It should be noted that the second weekend of 
events proposed for 2025 and 2026 (five event days in total per annum) are 
only payable if these additional event days take place.  

 
1.7 Through the revised licence to occupy, AEG Presents Limited propose to 

deliver All Points East and In the Neighbourhood in August 2024. In 
calendar years 2025, 2026 and 2027, AEG Presents Limited would 
guarantee the Council a fee for rights to hold up to 11 major event days and 
up to eight community event days (with the fee payable regardless of 
whether they deliver all the proposed event days). This would result in the 
Council receiving a guaranteed fee for 19 event days per annum in 2025, 
2026 and 2027.  

 
1.8 The additional event days will provide more opportunities for residents to 

benefit from cultural events, increase expenditure through the local 
economy and generate more income to support Council services including 
the upkeep of parks and open spaces.   

 
1.9 The licence to occupy would enable the Council to test (with an experienced 

operator with a good track record) an increased number of large and major 
event days per year in Victoria Park, in line with the Council’s revised Major 
Events Policy for Victoria Park.  
 

1.10 By demonstrating that Victoria Park can successfully hold more event days 
per annum, in line with the Major Events Policy for Victoria Park, it is 
anticipated that the Council will receive more commercially advantageous 
offers for future licence to occupy/contract opportunities. Future 
opportunities would be made available to the market in 2026 for a licence to 
occupy/contract commencing from 2028, by which point AEG Presents 
Limited will have (subject to obtaining a Premises Licence) delivered 11 
paid entry commercial music focussed major event days and eight free to 
access community event days per annum in Victoria Park.   

 
1.11 The revised licence to occupy would remain in line with the arrangement 

approved by Cabinet on 31 January 2024 with AEG Presents Limited 
delivering a proposed 11 music focussed event days and eight free to 
access community days over the three-year licence period, giving a total of 
19 major and large event days per year. In 2024, AEG Presents Ltd, due to 
insufficient planning time, propose to deliver 10 event days (All Points East 
and In the Neighbourhood). The increased number of event days would be 
implemented from 2025.  
 

 
 

Page 17



1.12 The proposed licensing arrangement is a key decision as it may have a 
significant impact on the communities of two or more wards. 

 
 
2 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
2.1 If the Council does not enter into a revised licence to occupy, then the 

Council would not be guaranteed a fee based on two additional weekends 
in May/June in 2025 and 2026, plus the loss of guaranteed income in 2027. 
Details of the loss of potential income to the Council is provided in exempt 
Appendix 1.  
 

2.2 AEG Presents Limited have proposed a guaranteed fee for all the event 
days proposed (19 event days per annum including two additional 
weekends in 2025, 2026 and 2027) on the basis that the Council revises 
their current licence to occupy to enable them to deliver a full three years of 
events plus All Points East/In the Neighbourhood in 2024. This is due to the 
financial risk and resources required to extend their current programme 
from 10 event days to up to 19 event days per annum.  
 

2.3 The licence to occupy will enable the Council to test the viability 
(commercially and practically in relation to Premises Licence requirements) 
of increasing the number of large and major events held in Victoria Park 
before committing to a longer term (up to six years) commercial 
arrangement with other potential operators. 

 
 
3 DETAILS OF THE REPORT 
 
3.1 In 2013 the first multi-year tender was awarded to Lovebox Festival Limited 

for three plus one year. In 2017, the Council went out to tender for a new 
contract from 2018 onwards for four plus one year, which was awarded to 
AEG Presents Limited. Due to the pandemic, and in line with procurement 
regulations, AEG Presents Limited was granted an extension of one year with 
2023 being the last year of this contract arrangement.  

 
3.2 In June 2023, officer authority was given to enter into a one-year licence to 

occupy arrangement with AEG Presents Limited to deliver 10 major event 
days in Victoria Park in the summer of 2024, whilst the Council undertook a 
review of the Victoria Park Major Events policy. 
 

3.3 In November 2023, Cabinet approved a revision to the Major Events Policy for 
Victoria Park, enabling the Council to host up to 12 major event days per 
annum in Victoria Park (subject to licensing).  
 

3.4 In January 2024, Cabinet approved a three-year licence to occupy with AEG 
Presents Ltd to deliver events in calendar years 2024, 2025 and 2026. 
 

3.5 Under the current licence to occupy arrangement (approved in January 2024), 
AEG Presents Limited are permitted to deliver a staggered events programme 

Page 18



in line with the Council’s major events policy. The proposal includes a 
potential 14 event days in 2024 (achieved through All Points East/In the 
Neighbourhood plus the option of one additional weekend in May/June 2024). 
By mutual agreement, and subject to market conditions, the licence to occupy 
permits up to 19 event days in 2025 and 2026 (delivered via All Points East/In 
the Neighbourhood and two weekends in May/June in 2025 and 2026). 
 

3.6 AEG Presents Limited are obligated to pay for one additional weekend in 
May/June 2025 and 2026 with 2024 subject to timescales for approvals and 
availability of artist etc. Although AEG Presents Limited considered options for 
delivering event dates in May/June 2024 (additional to All Points East/In the 
Neighbourhood), it has not been viable for them to secure artists and 
therefore there will be no additional events in 2024.  
 

3.7 As there are no additional event dates in May/June 2024, the Council will only 
receive a fee for All Points East/In the Neighbourhood in financial year 
2024/25. Under the current licence to occupy, the Council is guaranteed an 
additional fee for one weekend in May/June 2025 and 2026 (total of 14 event 
days per annum). However, the second weekend (taking the total to 19 event 
days per annum) is by mutual agreement and will be subject to market 
conditions so fees for these additional event days are not guaranteed.  

 
3.8 Currently AEG Presents Limited are only able to deliver two and half years of 

their three-year licence as the authority provided by Cabinet was limited to a 
licence to occupy for events in calendar years 2024, 2025 and 2026. AEG 
Presents Limited have submitted a revised proposal deliver events from 
August 2024 to September 2027 (just over three years and across four 
calendar years).  

 
3.9 Should the Council consider the revised proposal, AEG Presents Limited 

would guarantee to pay a licence fee for the optional second weekends in 
2025, 2026 and 2027 (total of 19 event days in 2025, 2026 and 2027). 
However, this would be contingent on the Council agreeing to enter into this 
arrangement by 30 June 2024 to give sufficient time for AEG Presents Limited 
to make arrangements for the additional event days in 2025.  
 

3.10 The revised proposal would provide the Council with secure financial planning 
across the next three financial years. Exempt Appendix 1 provides a 
breakdown of the guaranteed fee to be paid to the Council should this revised 
licence to occupy arrangement be entered into.  
 

3.11 AEG Presents Limited will only take the financial risk of committing to 19 
event days in 2025, 2026 and 2027, if the Council can offer a licence that 
extends into calendar year 2027. The revised licence would be for just over 
three years starting from 1 August 2024 until 30 September 2027 (as opposed 
to 1 May 2024 to end of September 2026).  The Council will need to enter into 
a licence to occupy by 30 June 2024 to enable AEG Presents Limited to 
commit to this arrangement.  
 

Page 19



3.12 AEG Presents Limited have delivered a successful event programme 
throughout their contract with the Council, exceeding contractual obligations 
and improving their performance year-on-year. AEG Presents Limited’s event 
planning and delivery will be monitored through a multi-agency planning 
process through which they will need to demonstrate to the police, licensing, 
health and safety (including environmental health) and other agencies that 
they are delivering their event plans.   
 

3.13 All events delivered as part of the licence to occupy will be in line with the 
Council’s Major Events Policy for Victoria Park and subject to licensing 
conditions (Licensing Act 2003).  
 

3.14 In line with the current licence to occupy arrangement, the revised licence to 
occupy would preclude other competing music focussed events from being 
held between April and September each year. However, the Council could 
continue to programme other types of events including winter fairs, food 
festivals, comedy, corporate and private hire events.  

 
3.15 The benefits of the licence to occupy include:   

 Guaranteed income over the licence to occupy period providing funding to 
maintain the quality of the Council’s parks that would otherwise not be 
available under current budgeting arrangements and to provide a more 
solid basis for medium term financial planning. 

 Allows for testing of the market for an increase in the number of major 
event days before the Council commits to a potential six-year arrangement 
from 2028 onwards.  

 Improved local impact management and resident feedback arrangements 
to inform detailed planning for subsequent years events through one event 
organiser (rather than a roster of changing event organisers).  

 
 
4 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Events income contributes significantly to the maintenance and provision of 

parks and open spaces across the borough, and the delivery of free to access 
community cultural events. Parks, open spaces and events are open to all 
residents from all backgrounds and protected characteristics.  

 
4.2 Income generated from a well-managed events programme in Victoria Park 

enables the Council to continue investing in parks and open spaces and free 
community events at a time of reducing budgets, thereby benefitting all 
residents.  
 

4.3 Events have localised, time limited impacts. These are not considered to 
affect any particular protected characteristic disproportionately. Localised 
impacts are minimised through contractual requirements to continuously 
improve event management arrangements. 

 
5 OTHER STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 
 

Page 20



5.1 This section of the report is used to highlight further specific statutory 
implications that are either not covered in the main body of the report or are 
required to be highlighted to ensure decision makers give them proper 
consideration. Examples of other implications may be: 

 Best Value Implications,  

 Consultations, 

 Environmental (including air quality),  

 Risk Management,  

 Crime Reduction,  

 Safeguarding. 

 Data Protection / Privacy Impact Assessment. 
 

 
5.2 Best Value Implications: a multi-year licence to occupy will support the 

Council’s budgeted income targets for 2024/25, 2025/26, 2026/27 and would 
guarantee income in financial year 2027/28. This approach will provide better 
financial stability and support the Council’s medium-term financial planning.  

 
A single event operator for major events in Victoria Park is considered the 
most effective use of resources, both in terms of staffing and asset use. The 
approach allows for more effective contract management arrangements, 
which could not be achieved with a multitude of contracts for smaller events.  

 
5.3 Consultations: events with an attendance of more than 499 at any one time, 

which have regulated entertainment and or the provision of alcohol, require a 
Premises Licence. It is a statutory requirement for Premises Licence 
applicants to undertake a 28-day public consultation period. AEG Presents 
Limited, in preparation for their 2024 events programme, have obtained a 
Premises Licence to hold events in Victoria Park in line with the Council’s 
Major Events Policy for Victoria Park. As part of the event planning process 
residents within a set catchment area of Victoria Park will be notified in 
advance of each event programme. This notification will detail event dates 
and timings (including set up and take down), sound check timings, road 
closures and how to contact them to raise a query or make a complaint. 
Information will also be published on the Council’s website.  
 
AEG Presents Limited have stated that they will hold community engagement 
meetings pre and post event to take into account any issues or suggestions 
by residents to inform their event planning and delivery arrangements. 

 
Environmental (including air quality): as the events are held in public open 
spaces, consideration is given to reduce impact to residents and the park. 
Measures include effective site planning, ground protection and noise 
management procedures agreed with Environmental Protection.  
AEG Presents Limited, through the Park Hire Application process and licence 
to occupy, will be required to provide detailed site plans, demarcating ground 
protection measures, plus details of site services (including effective waste 
management and recycling). AEG Presents Limited are committed to 
operating sustainable events and would continue to seek to improve their 
practices to reduce the environmental impact of their events programme. AEG 

Page 21



Presents Limited will also be charged an environmental impact fee that will be 
used to improve the park’s infrastructure.  
 

5.4 Risk Management:  the recommendations of this report seek to mitigate 
budgetary risks by securing guaranteed events income across four financial 
year. This approach will provide a more stable and predictable environment 
for year-on-year budgeting. 
 
If the Council were to go to market with an opportunity for a multi-year contact 
in 2024 rather than enter into a three-year licence to occupy with AEG 
Presents Limited, the commercial offers received are likely to be lower given 
that event operators will base their proposals on the established success of 
the venue and potential for additional events based on current / previous 
Premises Licences. The proposed licence to occupy will enable the Council to 
go to the market in 2026, once an expanded events programme has been 
successfully delivered at Victoria Park in relation to the necessary Premises 
Licence conditions.  
 
Should the Council decide to enter into this arrangement, then the licence to 
occupy agreement must be entered into no later than 30 June 2024 to provide 
sufficient time for AEG Presents Limited to plan for an increased events 
programme from 2025.  
 
The risk of residents being impacted by poorly managed events is reduced as 
AEG Presents Limited has delivered a successful event programme 
throughout their contract with the Council, exceeding contractual obligations 
and improving their performance year-on-year. The Council can be confident 
that, based on previous performance, an increased number of event days 
would be responsibly managed by AEG Presents Limited.  

 
All major events are subject to multi-agency planning, including the relevant 
emergency services. In addition to the contractual requirements, the premises 
licensing process provides for further mitigation through licensing conditions. 
Through the event planning process, the event organiser will need to 
demonstrate that they have the resources and experience to safely plan and 
deliver their event with minimum impact to the park and residents. This 
includes providing, relative to the size and risk of the event, Event 
Management Plans; Crowd Management Plan; Noise Management Plan, Risk 
Assessment (including fire); Safeguarding Policy; Sustainability Plan; and 
adequate insurance.  

 
5.5 Crime Reduction: AEG Presents Limited have made continuous 

improvements to their current event management arrangements in order to 
minimise any potential negative impact from major events. This has resulted 
in a reduction of adverse impacts and the current events programme has 
been confirmed as a low-crime event by the Metropolitan Police service. AEG 
Presents Limited are committed to building on these arrangements so they 
can expand their event programme.   
 

Page 22



AEG Presents Limited will be required to provide a Crowd Management Plan, 
which will be subject to review by the multi-agency planning group, which 
includes representatives from the Metropolitan Police Service. Through this 
process, event organisers will need to adequately demonstrate how they will 
meet the Licensing objectives (Licensing Act 2003). Detailed plans must be 
provided to document on site (event footprint) and off site (park and key 
external walking routes) arrangements to and from Victoria Park. 

 
5.6 Safeguarding: through the licensing and multi-agency planning process, 

event organisers must provide detailed and robust arrangements and 
measures to protect children and vulnerable adults from harm. These plans 
are subject to review by the multi-agency planning group. As part of the 
Premises Licence application and multi-agency planning process the 
Council’s Safeguarding and Quality Assurance Service team reviews 
safeguarding measures. 
 

5.7 Data Protection / Privacy Impact Assessment: event organisers do not 
manage sensitive data held by the Council. They are responsible for 
compliance with the Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA 2018) and the Privacy 
and Electronic Communications Regulations 2003 (SI 2003/2426) and this 
responsibility is covered via the Park Hire Contract.  

 
6 COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
 
6.1 As part of a review of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy for the 

next three years, additional income targets for major events were approved, 
commencing as part of the 2024/25 budget.  
 

6.2 Further financial comments are provided in exempt Appendix 1.  
 
 

7 COMMENTS OF LEGAL SERVICES  
 
7.1 Cabinet approved the option to enter into a three-year Licence to Occupy with 

AEG Presents Limited as required on 31 January 2024. 
 

7.2 The Cabinet report for the licence to occupy states that the licence would be 
for events held in 2024, 2025 and 2026. Therefore, a decision is required to 
authorise events to be held in 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027. This decision 
could be taken by the Mayor as an Individual Mayoral Decision (either for the 
amendment to be made or to authorise the Corporate Director for 
Communities to take an Officer Decision). Alternatively, the decision could be 
made by the Mayor in Cabinet, however this would need to be concluded 
before 30 June 2024.  
 

7.3 This report does not give rise to any particular legal implications in respect of 
planning, licensing, etc. Specific advice on event licensing, planning and other 
issues will be given to the relevant Committee or Sub-Committee, as required.  
 

Page 23



7.4 Section 145 of the Local Government Act 1972 gives local authorities a power 
to do or arrange for the doing of anything necessary or expedient for the 
provision of any entertainment. This power includes the power to set aside or 
enclose any part of a park or pleasure ground that they own or that is under 
their control. This includes the power to allow such a part of a park or 
pleasure ground to be used by some other person, on payment or such other 
terms as the authority thinks fit and allows that other person to make charges 
for admission. 
 

7.5 The Council has the power to grant a licence for the use of the land by virtue 
of Section One of the Localism Act 2011. The terms of the licence agreement 
will be agreed with AEG Presents Limited and will cater for standard 
occupation terms in order to protect the land, the receipt by the Council of the 
licence fee and ensure it is returned to the Council in an appropriate condition 
after use amongst other things. The agreement will prohibit unacceptable 
uses of the land in the usual manner. 
 

7.6 AEG Presents Limited’s stated intention is to use the land to provide events to 
the public but should AEG Presents Limited proceed with this intention this 
will be subject to obtaining the appropriate statutory permissions. Nothing in 
the agreement will affect amplify or fetter the Council’s statutory duties in this 
regard in any way.  
 

7.7 The agreement will not require AEG Presents Limited to undertake any 
activities on behalf of the Council or at the Council’s behest beyond those 
activities normally required to safeguard and protects the Council’s land.  
 

7.8 The proposal for the use of the land submitted to the Council shows 
information relating to AEG Presents Limited’s financial and business affairs 
and therefore the information is exempt for the purposes of Schedule12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972. The release by the Council into the public 
domain may be actionable by AEG Presents Limited, which could significantly 
affect public funds. Therefore, the public interest in knowing the information is 
outweighed by the public interest in maintaining the exemption. Therefore, the 
proposal is not restated here. 

 
____________________________________ 

 
 
Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents 
 
Linked Report 

 Cabinet report for the amendment to the Victoria Park Major Events Policy 
and decision taken.  

 Cabinet report for the current three-year licence to occupy and decision taken.  

 
Appendices 

 Exempt Appendix 1  
 

Page 24

https://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=14179
https://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/documents/g14179/Decisions%2029th-Nov-2023%2017.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=2
https://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=14182
https://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/documents/g14182/Decisions%2031st-Jan-2024%2017.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=2


Background Documents – Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Access 
to Information)(England) Regulations 2012 

 None. 
 
Officer contact details for documents: 
N/A 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST AND OTHER INTERESTS
	3.1 Victoria Park Licence to Occupy
	Appendix. 1 Victoria Park Licence to Occupy
	Appendix. 2


